
Simon Young, Solicitor
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Thursday 16 March 2017 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

PART ONE (OPEN TO THE PRESS AND PUBLIC)

The Agenda items below that attract public speakers will be taken first – the resulting 
order of the Agenda will be disclosed by the Chairman at the start of the meeting.

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Planning Committee meeting, on 
the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman)
Councillor Mike Teasdale (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Michael Arthur
Councillor John Beckett
Councillor Neil Dallen
Councillor Jan Mason
Councillor Tina Mountain

Councillor Peter O'Donovan
Councillor Martin Olney
Councillor David Reeve
Councillor Vince Romagnuolo
Councillor Clive Smitheram
Councillor David Wood

Yours sincerely

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

For further information, please contact Sandra Dessent, tel:  01372 732121 or email:  
sdessent@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6)

Public Document Pack



2

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Planning Committee held on the 16 February 2017 (attached) and 
authorise the Chairman to sign them.

3. PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01401/FUL - THE ROVERIES, COX LANE, 
WEST EWELL KT19 9NR  (Pages 7 - 22)

Demolition of derelict detached house and erection of a block of eight flats with 
seven parking spaces.

4. PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01688/REM - HORTON PARK GOLF AND 
COUNTRY CLUB, HOOK ROAD, EPSOM KT19 8QG  (Pages 23 - 28)

Variation of Condition 2 (Plans) of 16/00749/FUL (Driving bay extension and 
new conservatory to club house) to undertake minor amendments to driving bay 
and conservatory.

5. SITE VISITS  (Pages 29 - 30)

Members are asked to put forward any applications which it is considered 
warrant a site visit.



1

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 16 February 2017

PRESENT -

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman);Councillor Mike Teasdale (Vice-Chairman); 
Councillors Michael Arthur, John Beckett, Graham Dudley (as nominated substitute for 
Councillor Peter O'Donovan), Jan Mason, Tina Mountain, Martin Olney, David Reeve, 
Clive Smitheram, David Wood and Tella Wormington (as nominated substitute for 
Councillor Neil Dallen)

In Attendance: Councillor Peter Webb 

Absent: Councillor Neil Dallen, Councillor Peter O'Donovan and Councillor 
Vince Romagnuolo

Officers present: Adele Castle (Planning Development Manager), Louise Mathie 
(Solicitor), John Robinson (Planning Officer), James Udall (Planning Officer) and 
Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services Officer)

49 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made by Councillors in items on this Agenda.

50 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning Committee held on 15 
December 2016 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

51 PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01068/FUL - 57 LONGDOWN LANE NORTH, 
EWELL KT17 3JB 

Description

Demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of 2 detached houses with 
associated parking (Amended drawings received 31.01.2017).

Decision

Planning permission is REFUSED for the following reason:

(1) By reason of its scale, massing, layout and design, the development 
would result in the over-development of the site, leading to the 
house on Plot A appearing overly dominant in the outlook from No 
55 Longdown Lane North, and the overall scheme cramped within 
the plot. The application therefore fails to comply with the 

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 16 February 2017 2

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

requirements of Policy CS5 of the Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies (2015).

The Committee noted a verbal representation from an objector.  Letters of 
representation had been published on the Council’s website and were available 
to the public and members of the Committee in advance of the meeting.

52 PLANNING APPLICATION 16/01387/FUL - PAVILION, AURIOL PARK, 
SALISBURY ROAD, WORCESTER PARK, KT4 7DP 

Description

Change of use of former Rangers room in Pavilion building to Café (Class A3) 
use.

Decision

Planning permission is PERMITTED subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans and documents: site 
plan dated 14/12/16 and annotated floorplan drawing no 2204/110

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

Informative:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line 
with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

53 SITE VISITS 

The Committee reviewed and considered site visits and decided that a visit 
should be held at the appropriate time in connection with the following 
applications:

 65 London Road, Ewell, KT17 2BL – 16/00933/FUL

Page 4

AGENDA ITEM 2



Meeting of the Planning Committee, 16 February 2017 3

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

 5 Cox Lane, West Ewell, KT19 9LR – 16/01146/FUL

 18a Worple Road, Epsom, Surrey KT18 5EF – 16/01421/FLH

54 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The press and public were asked to leave the meeting.

Note:  Councillor Peter Webb left the Chamber at 20.52 and did not return to the 
meeting.

55 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - FORMER DAIRY CREST SITE 
ALEXANDRA ROAD 

The restricted Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 15 December were 
agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

These Minutes were not published because the meeting was closed to the press 
and public on the grounds that information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 9.00 pm

COUNCILLOR HUMPHREY REYNOLDS (CHAIRMAN)

Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

The Roveries 59 - 63 Cox Lane West Ewell Surrey KT19 9NR

Demolition of derelict detached house and erection of a block of eight flats with seven 
parking spaces

Ward: Ruxley
Contact Officer:  John Robinson 

1 Plans and Representations

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically.  Please click on the 
following link to access the plans and representations relating to this 
application via the Council’s website, which is provided by way of 
background information to the report.  Please note that the link is current at 
the time of publication, and will not be updated. 

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OI9QBUGYN3K00

2 Summary

2.1 The application proposes the demolition of the existing dwelling to provide a 
new two-storey flatted development comprising a mixture of studio, 1, 2 and 
3 bed units (totalling 8 units) and associated parking.

2.2 This application has been submitted to committee at the request of Cllr Jan 
Mason.

2.3 The application is recommended for APPROVAL

3 Site description

3.1 The application site which has an area of 0.07ha is located at the north 
western end of Cox Lane, close to the junction with Pemberley Close. The 
site which is largely overgrown with small trees and shrubs is currently 
occupied by a vacant two storey dwelling which is in a state of disrepair.

3.2 The site is located along the historic route of Cox Lane. Cox Lane was re-
routed in conjunction with the development of the area as a residential 
suburb, but the original route remained the main access to the site. The 
properties to the east of the site are also accessed by the original Cox Lane, 
whereas beyond the application site to the west, the old road is now totally 
overgrown and impassable. 

Page 7

AGENDA ITEM 3

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OI9QBUGYN3K00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=OI9QBUGYN3K00


PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

3.3 Newer residential properties are located to the south, west and east of the 
site. To the immediate south is a modern housing estate, with a mixture of 2-
storey terraced houses (backing onto the application site) and a 4-storey 
apartment building (slightly further to the south). To the west is a 2-storey 
terrace. A single-storey detached dwelling is located on the plot to the 
immediate east. To the north, the site is bounded by a greensward, beyond 
which is (the re-routed) Cox Lane.

4 Proposal

4.1 The application seeks permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling 
to provide a new 2-storey flatted development comprising 2 studio, 2 one 
bedroom, 2 two bedroom and 2 three bedroom flat units (totalling 8 units) 
and associated parking. 

4.2 The new flat-roofed, two-storey building would have a roughly square 
footprint, set centrally on the rectangular site.

4.3 It would be setback some 4.5m from the (rear) northern boundary, 12m from 
the front (southern boundary) and 1.3m/1m from the respective western and 
eastern flank boundaries.

4.4 Vehicular and pedestrian access would be via (the currently unpaved) Cox 
Lane. Additional pedestrian access would be provided along the site’s 
northern boundary.

4.5 Private amenity space for the ground floor units as well as communal 
amenity space would be provided.

4.6 The contemporary style of the building would comprise “flat” facades 
alongside the western and eastern flank boundaries. These elevations would 
incorporate “green walls”, with planting growing on wires attached to the 
facades. The southern (front) and northern (garden) elevations have been 
designed as shallow curves, clad in timber, with small rendered elements. .a 
brick internal layer which would sit behind the overall white rendered “shell”. 
These elevations would be further articulated by steel-framed projecting 
balconies.  .

4.7 It is proposed to provide 7 parking spaces to the front of the building, and a 
bicycle storage facility. Refuse storage would be located in frontage area, 
adjacent to the parking area

5 Comments from third parties

5.1 The application was advertised by means of letters of notification to 41 
neighbouring properties, and site notice.  To date (20.02..2017) one letter of 
objection  has been received regarding:

 Out of keeping.

 Overbearing, overlooking and increased noise and disturbance to No 31 
Pemberton Chase

Page 8

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

6 Consultations

6.1 County Highway Authority: No objections. Conditions to be imposed on any 
permission granted.

6.2 Tree Officer: No objection. Two low quality trees proposed to be felled.

6.3 Contaminated Land Officer: Please place a contaminated land informative on 
any consent granted due to the fact that the property is situated adjacent to a 
site formerly occupied by a scrapyard.

7 Relevant planning history

7.1 15/00489/FUL: Demolition of existing dwelling house and erection of 8 flats 
in a two-storey building with associated parking spaces: GRANTED

7.2 16/00296/FUL: Demolition of derelict dwelling house and erection of ten flats 
(four studio, four 2-bed and two 3-bed) in a three storey building with seven 
parking spaces: REFUSED. Appeal UPHELD

8 Planning Policy

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS1                         General Policy
Policy CS3                              Biodiversity and Nature Conservation
Policy CS5 Built Environment
Policy CS6  Sustainable Development
Policy CS7 Housing Provision
Policy CS8  Housing Location 
Policy CS16      Highways

Development Management Policies Document 2015  
Policy DM9     Townscape Character and Local Distinctiveness
Policy DM10   Design Requirements for New Developments
Policy DM4 Biodiversity and New Development
Policy DM5 Trees and Landscape
Policy DM12          Housing Standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Sustainable Design 2016
Parking Standards for Residential development 2015

9 Planning considerations

Previous Application and Appeal Decision

9.1 A similar residential scheme for development (15/00489/FUL) seeking 
detailed planning permission for the erection of 8 flats in a two-storey 
building with associated parking spaces was granted permission under 
delegated authority in December 2015. 

Page 9

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

9.2 A subsequent residential scheme for development (16/00296/FUL) seeking 
detailed planning permission for the demolition of the existing building and 
the erection of ten flats (four studio, four 2-bed and two 3-bed) in a three 
storey building with seven parking spaces was refused by Committee  in 
October 2016 on inter alia the following grounds:

 The proposed scheme would provide insufficient on-site parking contrary 
to Policy DM37 of the Development Management Policies 2015 and the 
Council’s adopted Parking Standards for Residential Development SPD 
2015

 In the absence of a completed legal obligation under section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the applicant has 
failed to comply with CS9 (Affordable Housing) and CS12 (Developer 
Contributions) of the 2007 Core Strategy in relation to the provision of a 
commuted sum in lieu of the on -site provision of affordable housing units

9.3 In his decision the Inspector noted that whilst the Council considered that the 
proposal would provide off-street parking in accordance with the 
development plan, the studios could be converted to one-bedroom flats 
which would result in a greater demand for off-street parking than the 
scheme provides. However, the Inspector stated that there was no evidence 
to substantiate this claim, and the floor areas of the studios suggested that 
their use as 1-bedroom flats would be unlikely. The parking provision would 
therefore comply with the Council’s Parking Standards for Residential 
Development Supplementary Planning Document 2015, which does not 
require parking for studios. He concluded that on this issue, there would be 
no conflict with DMP Policy DM37 which requires developments to 
demonstrate an appropriate level of off-street parking to avoid an 
unacceptable impact on on-street parking and local traffic conditions.

9.4 Referring to the financial contribution in lieu of the on-site provision of 
affordable housing, the Inspector noted that a material consideration of 
considerable importance and weight is the Court of Appeal judgment of 11 
May 2016 in respect of a challenge to the Written Ministerial Statement of 28 
November 2014 (WMS). The intention of the WMS was to ensure that 
financial contributions should not become a disproportionate burden to small 
developers and thereby frustrate housing supply; it stated that ‘for sites of 10 
units or less….affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be 
sought’. The Court upheld that this should be considered as national 
planning policy defining the specific circumstances where contributions for 
affordable housing planning obligations should not be sought from small 
scale development. The Inspector stated that it was a material consideration 
to which he attached great weight.

Page 10

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

9.5 Whilst the Inspector accepted that there is significant need in the Borough for 
affordable housing, and he noted the Council’s efforts to reduce the burden 
under the Policy taking into account viability. However, he stated that this did 
not outweigh Policy CS9 when considered against the benefit of the 
increased housing supply intended under the WMS. He concluded that whilst 
he accorded significant weight to the objective of CS Policies CS9 and CS12 
in the light of the affordable housing need in the Borough, on the evidence 
before him,  it did not outweigh Government policy. Accordingly, a planning 
obligation in this respect was not necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.

9.6 The extant permission and the Inspectors appeal decision are therefore a 
material consideration in assessing this application.

Principle of Development

9.7 The principle of demolishing the dwelling and the redevelopment of the site 
has been established through the extant permission (15/00489/FUL) for the 
erection of erection of 8 flats in a two-storey building with associated parking 
spaces. 

9.8 The redevelopment of this site within an already developed residential area 
is an appropriate and sustainable location for such development and in 
principle accords with the policies contained within national and local 
planning policy.

Visual Impact

9.9 The building would have an overall height of 6.1m; around 400mm lower 
than the ridge height of the adjoining terrace to the west. The southern (front) 
and northern (garden) elevations designed as shallow curves would reduce 
the apparent depth of the building as seen from the east and west. 

9.10 The predominant use of timber cladding (with “green” flank walls) has been 
carefully considered and detailed, albeit in a contemporary manner. This 
combination of materials would help to integrate the new building with the 
retained and proposed landscaping

9.11 It is therefore concluded that the proposed scheme in terms of its design, 
scale and massing would not have a harmful impact on the character and 
appearance of both the immediate and wider area and would therefore  
accord with Policy DM9 and DM10.

9.12 It is therefore concluded that the proposed scheme in terms of its design, 
scale and massing would not have a harmful impact on the character and 
appearance of both the immediate and wider area and would therefore 
accord with Policy DM9 and DM10.

Page 11

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

Residential Amenity

9.13 The front elevation of the proposed scheme would face the rear elevations of 
the properties in Pemberley Close and Pemberley Chase at a distance of 
some 20m which is considered adequate to avoid significant loss of privacy. 
(It is also noted that existing trees along the boundaries of the affected 
properties would provide an additional element of screening).

9.14 The shallow curved footprint of the front and rear elevations would prevent 
the new building from conflicting with a 45 degree outlook angle subtended 
from the nearest ground floor windows of the adjoining properties. 

9.15 A condition requiring the upper floor flank windows to be obscurely glazed 
would prevent any overlooking of the gardens of the affected adjoining 
properties.

9.16 The proposed scheme would therefore accord with Policy DM10

Amenity Space

9.17 Access to private amenity space for the ground floor flats (No 3 and 4) would 
be provided, whilst units 1 and 2 would have private terraces. Upper floor 
flats would be provided with balconies. Overall, this would be adequate in 
terms of both size and quality to suit the needs of small family 
accommodation, and would comply with policy DM12’s requirement for 
amenity space for flatted developments. 

Parking/Access

9.18 Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented 
or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 
development are “severe”.

9.19 The development would provide 7 parking spaces and a total of 10 bicycle 
spaces.   The Council’s adopted Parking Standards requirements for car 
parking provision within residential developments are a minimum of 1 space 
for one and two bed flat units and 1.5 spaces for 3 bed flats. (There is no 
category/requirement for studio flats)   The development is in a sustainable 
location, within proximity of a local bus route and the parking provision is 
therefore acceptable.

9.20 A pedestrian access would be provided along the site’s northern boundary, 
which would enable visitors, to use the public parking spaces in the 
embayment along Cox Lane, directly opposite the site.

9.21 Refuse storage would be provided in a refuse store located at the south-
western corner of the site, adjacent to the parking area.

9.22 The Highway Authority has no objection in principle to the development.

Page 12

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

9.23 The proposed scheme would therefore comply with Policy DM37 of the  
Development Management Policies 2015 and the Council's  adopted Parking 
Standards for Residential Development SPD 2015

Sustainability and Renewable Energy

9.24 Core Strategy Policy CS6 requires proposals to demonstrate how 
sustainable construction and design can be incorporated to improve the 
energy efficiency of development.  

9.25 The applicants propose to utilise photo-voltaic panels, which they submit 
would provide 10% of the schemes predicted energy needs from renewable 
or low carbon sources. 

9.26 The proposal is indicative in the main and an appropriate planning condition 
is recommended to secure their inclusion.

Ecology

9.27 Policy DM4 of the Development Management Policy Document states that 
every opportunity should be taken to secure net benefit to the Borough’s 
biodiversity. The application site clearly has some biodiversity and nature 
potential interest as it contains a number of “self-set” trees; other vegetation 
has been felled and left lying on the site, along with areas of dense bramble. 

9.28 The applicants have submitted a Protected Species Survey which concluded 
that no bats were found to be using the roof void of the existing dwelling and 
that the site was not constrained by the presence of great crested newts, 
dormice, or badgers.

9.29 The proposed scheme would incorporate green walls which would provide 
compensation for the increased building footprint on the site. In addition it is 
recommended that conditions be imposed requiring the provision of both bat 
and bird boxes within the site.

9.30 In view of the above and the proposed mitigation measures, it is considered 
that the proposed scheme would be in accordance with Core Strategy Policy 
CS3 and Policy DM4.

Trees

9.31 The application is supported by a Tree Survey which indicates that 2 trees 
are to be felled as a result of the proposed development. The trees to be 
removed are mainly poor quality and some of the trees could be replaced by 
appropriate new tree planting. The Borough’s Tree Officer raises no 
objection to the proposed scheme. Details of hard and soft landscaping are 
secured by an appropriate condition.

Page 13

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

Affordable Housing

9.32 Policy CS9 requires the provision of 20% of the 8 units in the scheme as 
affordable units, which equates to 1.6 units.  In terms of the Borough’s 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - Developer Contributions, on site 
provision of affordable housing will always be sought in the first instance.

9.33 The applicant submitted a Viability Report which stated that there is 
insufficient value in the proposal to support the full contribution.

9.34 This evidence has been scrutinised by the Council’s independent valuer who 
is in agreement that whilst the scheme is unable to support a fully policy 
compliant affordable housing scheme, it would be able to support a level of 
contributions, albeit at a low level of £20,850.

9.35 Notwithstanding the above requirement, in view of the recent Appeal 
Decision (refer to paragraph 9.4 above) on application, the Council will not 
be seeking a commuted sum.

Community Infrastructure Levy

9.36 The proposed scheme is CIL liable.

10 Conclusion

10.1 The proposal seeks to erect a new residential building in a location which is 
considered appropriate.  The new building would not harm the wider 
character of the area, nor lead to a loss of neighbouring residential 
amenities.  In light of the above it is recommended that planning permission 
is granted.

11 Recommendation

11.1 The Committee authorise the Head of Place Development to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:

Condition(s):

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of the 
materials as detailed on the schedule of materials on the planning 
application form

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy 

Page 14

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(3) No development shall take place until full details, of both hard and soft 
landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape maintenance 
for a minimum period of 5 years, have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority. The approved landscape 
scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding and turfing) shall be 
implemented prior to the occupation of the development hereby 
approved and thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an 
appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities 
of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 
(2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management 
Policies 2015.

(4) Prior to the commencement of any development works, including 
ground preparation and demolition, the tree protection measures as set 
out in the Tree Protection Plan dated 7 September June 2015 produced 
by Andrew Day Aboricultural Consultancy Ltd shall be 
implemented/erected and shall remain in place for the duration of the 
construction works.  The protection barriers shall only be removed on 
the completion of all construction activity and with the written 
agreement of the local planning authority.  All works shall be carried 
out in strict accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with 
Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007 and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the 
Development Management Policies Document 2015

(5) No new development shall be occupied until space has been laid out 
within the site in accordance with the approved plans for a maximum of 
7 cars and a minimum of 10 bicycles to be parked. The parking area 
shall be used and retained exclusively for its designated use.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord 
with the provisions of Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(6) No development shall commence until a Construction Transport 
Management Plan, to include details of:
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(f)  HGV deliveries and hours of operation
(h)  measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(k)  on-site turning for construction vehicles

Page 15

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway 
safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to accord 
with the provisions of Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy 2007

(7) Prior to the commencement of the development details of sustainability 
measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. These details shall demonstrate how the 
development would be efficient in the use of energy, water and 
materials including means of providing the energy requirements of the 
development from renewable technologies. The development shall be 
carried out in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the 
first occupation of the building, shall be maintained as such thereafter 
and no change shall take place without the prior written consent of the 
local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development sustainable 
and efficient in the use of energy, water and materials are included in 
the development in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy 
(2007).

(8) The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until they 
have achieved a water efficiency standard using not more than 110 
litres per person per day maximum indoor water consumption.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes 
efficient use of water to comply with Policy DM12 of the Development 
Management Policies 2015.

(9) No development shall take place until details and location of the 
installation of bat and bird boxes to enhance the biodiversity interest of 
the site have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the 
occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter 
maintained.

Reason: To enhance biodiversity and nature habitats in accordance 
with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM4 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

(10) The upper floor windows in the flank elevations of the development 
hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscure glass of no less than 
obscurity level 3, and shall thereafter be permanently retained as such.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupants of adjoining 
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies Document 2015

(11) The windows serving bathrooms in the flank elevations of the 
development hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscure glass of no 

Page 16

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

less than obscurity level 3, and shall thereafter be permanently retained 
as such.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupants of adjoining 
properties in accordance with Policy DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies Document 2015.

(12) Prior to the commencement of development, a 1:20 scale vertical 
section through the front  and flank elevations  including details of 
windows (including head, sill and window reveal details), balcony 
balustrade, rainwater goods,  as well as a 1:50 scale typical elevation, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the character and appearance of the 
conservation and wider area in accordance with  Policy CS5 of the Core 
Strategy 2007and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development 
Management Policies Document 2015

(13) Any trees proposed to be felled as a result of the development hereby 
permitted shall be replaced by other trees in accordance with a scheme 
to be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority, and all 
planting in accordance with such an approved scheme shall be 
completed within a period of twelve months from the date on which the 
development of the site is commenced or shall be carried out in the 
first planting season following completion of the development.

Reason: The trees within the site make a substantial contribution to the 
visual amenities enjoyed by residents in the area and the felling of any 
trees without replacement would be detrimental to such amenities and 
contrary to Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management 
Policies Document 2015.

(14) No development shall take place until full details, of the proposed 
"green wall", including a schedule of maintenance for a minimum 
period of 5 years, have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The approved "green wall" (including 
planting) shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby approved and thereafter retained.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an 
appropriate "green wall"  in the interests of the visual amenities of the 
locality in accordance with  Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007 and 
Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 
Document 2015

(15) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following plans:

A03 Site Plan

A04 Ground floor plan
Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

A05    First Floor

A06    East Elevation

A07    South Elevation

A08         West Elevation

A09         North Elevation

Roof Plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning as required by Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy 2007

Informative(s):

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with 
the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012

(2) The property is situated close to a former saw mill.  In the event that 
contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, works should be suspended and it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.  In that event, an 
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and remediation 
carried out as is necessary, subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority.

(3) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance shall be carried out 
on the application site.

(4) The water efficiency standard required under condition 8 has been 
adopted by the local planning authority through the Development 
Management Policies 2015.  This standard is the ‘optional requirement’ 
detailed in Building Regulations 2010, Part G Approved Document (AD) 
Buildings Regulations (2015), at Appendix A paragraph A1.

The applicant is advised that this standard can be achieved through 
either:

(a) using the ‘fittings approach’ where water fittings are installed as per 
the table at 2.1 in the AD or

(b) using the water efficiency calculation methodology detailed in the 
AD Part G Appendix A.

(5) The applicant should note that under the terms of The Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 and Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, it is an offence to 
disturb nesting birds or roosting bats which are also European 
Protected Species.

Page 18

AGENDA ITEM 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017 16/01401/FUL

You should note that the work hereby granted consent does not 
override the statutory protection afforded to these and other protected 
species and you are advised to seek expert advice if you suspect that 
the demolition would disturb any protected species. Please note that a 
European Protected Species Licence will be required to allow the 
proposed development to proceed lawfully. Further details can be 
found at:

https://www.gov.uk/environmental-management/wildlife-habitat-
conservation

(6) This form of development is considered liable for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a non-negotiable charge on new 
developments which involve the creation of 100 square metres or more 
of gross internal floorspace or involve the creation of a new dwelling, 
even when this is below 100 square metres. The levy is a standardised, 
non-negotiable charge expressed as pounds per square metre, and are 
charged on the net additional floorspace generated by a development.

You will receive more information regarding the CIL in due course.

More information and the charging schedule are available online

http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-
72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published

(7) You are advised that works related to the construction of the 
development hereby permitted, including works of demolition or 
preparation prior to building operations shall not take place other than 
between the hours of 08.00 to 18.00 hours Mondays to Fridays; 08.00 to 
13.00 hours Saturdays; with no work on Saturday afternoons (after 
13.00 hours), Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.

Page 19

AGENDA ITEM 3

https://www.gov.uk/environmental-management/wildlife-habitat-conservation
https://www.gov.uk/environmental-management/wildlife-habitat-conservation
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published
http://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/NR/exeres/74864EB7-F2ED-4928-AF5A-72188CBA0E14,frameless.htm?NRMODE=Published


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



16/01401/FUL

I Scale: 1:1062

Reproduced  from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office<!:) Crown Copyright  2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright  and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

Page 21

AGENDA ITEM 3
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01688/REM  
16 MARCH 2017

Horton Park Golf And Country Club, Hook Road, Epsom, Surrey, KT19 8QG 

Variation of Condition 2 (Plans) of 16/00749/FUL (Driving bay extension and new 
conservatory to club house) to undertake minor amendments to driving bay and 
conservatory

Ward: Ruxley
Contact Officer: John Mumford

1 Plans

1.1 The Council now holds this information electronically.  Please click on the 
following link to access the plans and representations relating to the 
originally permitted application via the Council’s website, which is provided 
by way of background information to the report.  

Link: http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OLGU
PFGYFXF00 

Summary

1.2 This application relates to minor amendments to the scheme (16/00749/FUL) 
approved by Committee in October 2016. The workshop/ballwasher facility at 
the western end of the driving range would be marginally extended, 4 extra 
driving bays would be incorporated into the existing driving bay area and the 
teaching bay would also be marginally extended. There would in addition be 
minor elevational changes to the driving bay and new conservatory. 

1.3 The wider application site comprises about 50ha of land that is set on the 
north-eastern edge of the Horton Country Park and is utilised as a golf 
course and driving range. The site forms part of the Metropolitan Green Belt 
and the application is referred to Committee for determination because it 
involves Council owned land. 

1.4 The application is recommended for APPROVAL as it involves a policy 
compliant open recreational use in the Green Belt and there are no visual or 
amenity concerns relating to the proposal.

2 Site description

2.1 Horton Park Golf and Country Club occupies land owned by Epsom and 
Ewell Borough Council. The existing facilities comprise an 18-hole and 9-
hole complex, a clubhouse with shop and a driving range. Extensive parking 
is provided alongside the clubhouse, to the north-east of the site and in the 
northern corner of the site adjacent to Chessington Road frontage is an 18 
hole adventure golf course aimed at children. 

Page 23

AGENDA ITEM 4

http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OLGUPFGYFXF00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OLGUPFGYFXF00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OLGUPFGYFXF00
http://eplanning.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=OLGUPFGYFXF00


PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01688/REM  
16 MARCH 2017

3 Proposal

3.1 The application seeks permission for minor amendments to the approved 
plans under 16/00749/FUL relating to the erection of an extended roof 
overhang with a depth of 4.0m and maximum height of 4.7m to the front of 
the existing golf driving bays and the conservatory that would measure 23m 
(width) x 8m (depth) x 4m (height) and would be immediately adjacent to the 
western elevation of the club house building.  The minor changes sought are 
a consequence of further refinement of the detailed design and cover a small 
extension to the workshop/ballwasher facility at the western end of the 
driving range, incorporation of 4 extra driving bays within the existing driving 
bay area, a marginal extension to the teaching bay together with minor 
elevational changes to the driving bay and new conservatory. 

4 Comments from third parties

4.1 The application was advertised by means of letters of notification to the 15 
nearest residential properties on Chessington Road some 140 metres distant 
to the north.  To date (01.03.2017) no letters of objection have been 
received.

5 Consultations

5.1 Surrey County Council – No objections.

6 Relevant planning history

Application 
number

Decision 
date

Application detail Decision

16/00749/FUL 12.10.2016 Driving bay extension and new 
conservatory to club house

Granted

7 Planning Policy

National Policy Planning Framework (NPPF) 2012
Chapter 9: Paragraphs 79-89 Protecting the Green Belt

Core Strategy 2007
Policy CS2 Green Belt
Policy CS13 Community, Cultural and Built Sports Facilities

Development Management Policies 2015  
Policy DM10 Design Requirements for New Developments
Policy DM34 New Social Infrastructure

Page 24

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01688/REM  
16 MARCH 2017

8 Planning considerations

Impact on the Green Belt

8.1 The application site lies within the Green Belt and accordingly the application 
needs to be assessed as to its conformity with national Green Belt policy set 
out within the NPPF. The NPPF states the following that is considered 
relevant to this proposal: 

 ‘The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to keep land permanently 
open. 

 Local planning authorities should plan positively to enhance the 
beneficial use of the Green Belt, such as looking for opportunities for 
outdoor sport and recreation. 

 Exceptions to inappropriate development (buildings) in the Green Belt 
are… ‘provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor 
recreation and for cemeteries, as long as it preserves the openness of 
the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of including land 
within it’ and ‘extension or  alteration of a building provided it does not 
result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the 
original building. ‘

8.2 It is considered that the proposed development in the case of the driving 
range extension is providing appropriate facilities for outdoor sport / 
recreation and therefore cannot be defined as inappropriate development.  
The conservatory is a relatively modest extension to the original building and 
would meet the criteria set out under Policy DM3 that requires extensions to 
be no greater than 30% above the volume of the existing building. 
Furthermore the siting of the extensions adjacent to the existing buildings 
and the scale and design of the structures would not have a negative impact 
on the openness of the Green Belt. 

Residential Amenity

8.3 The proposal would be situated some 140m away from the nearest 
residential properties that are located across Chessington Road. It is 
therefore considered that there would be no impact on residential amenity in 
terms of noise and disturbance.  

9 Conclusion

9.1 The application proposal would provide a facility that would enhance the 
attractiveness and utility of the Golf and Country Club to users and as such 
this would meet the policy objective under polices CS13 and DM34 to 
encourage multi-use and flexible use of leisure facilities in the Borough. The 
minor changes sought would have no harmful impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt or upon residential amenity.   

10 Recommendation

10.1 Planning permission granted subject to the following conditions:

Page 25

AGENDA ITEM 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE 16/01688/REM  
16 MARCH 2017

Condition(s):

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of the original permission granted 12 
October 2016.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and documents: 16042/100A, 
16042/101A, 16042/103A, 16042/105A, 16042/106A.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to 
comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).  

(3) The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of the 
materials as shown on drawings 16042/103A and 16042/105A.  

Reason: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the 
visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy 
CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the 
Development Management Policies 2015.

Informative(s):

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with 
the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012.

Page 26

AGENDA ITEM 4



Date

1

16/01688/REM
Horton Park Golf & Country Club

/1

I Scale: 1:2124

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office© Crown Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Page 27

AGENDA ITEM 4
ANNEXE 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 MARCH 2017

SITE VISITS

Report of the: Head of Place Development
Contact:  Mark Berry
Annexes/Appendices (attached): None
Other available papers (not attached): None

REPORT SUMMARY 

To identify planning applications which Members of the Committee consider 
should be the subject of a Member site visit.

RECOMMENDATION:

Members are asked to put forward any planning 
applications which it is considered warrant Members 
visiting the site before a decision is made.

Notes

1 Implications for Community Strategy and Council’s Key Priorities

1.1 This report accords with the functions and objectives of Development 
Management.

2 Details

2.1 The Committee is asked to note that planning applications previously 
agreed as the subject of Member site visits that have been withdrawn or 
recommended for refusal under delegated authority are therefore removed 
from the list.

2.2 The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to add to the list of 
applications to be subject to a site visit (at the appropriate time).
• 65 London Road, Ewell, KT17 2BL – 16/00933/FUL
• 5 Cox Lane, West Ewell, KT19 9LR – 16/01146/FUL
• 18a Worple Road, Epsom, Surrey KT18 5EF – 16/01421/FLH

2.3 The Committee is asked to note that a site visit should only be requested 
for planning applications that meet at least one of the following criteria:

2.3.1 If the whole of the site cannot be seen from the road
2.3.2 If the application is large and/or complex

2.4 The Committee is reminded that they will need to give their reason for 
requesting a site visit at the Planning Committee Meeting.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

Page 29

AGENDA ITEM 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Planning Application 16/01401/FUL - The Roveries, Cox Lane, West Ewell KT19 9NR
	Roveries Site Plan

	4 Planning Application 16/01688/REM - Horton Park Golf and Country Club, Hook Road, Epsom KT19 8QG
	Horton Park Golf and Country Club Site plan

	5 Site Visits

